
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Minutes

November 18, 2015 5
Payroll

Payroll/Overtime Report 8
Warrants

Accounts Payable 11
Resolution Accepting Public Pedestrian Easement as Part of
Site Plan Review No. 15-03 for Valley Health Team Parking Lot
Expansion

Staff Report - VHT Easement 19
Resolution Accepting Rights of Way and Easements as Part of
Conditional Use Permit No. 12-02 for the Mid Valley Disposal
Expansion

Staff Report - Mid Valley Easements 25
Resolution Approving Agreements for Utility Service for 322 S.
Goldenrod Avenue and 348 S. Goldenrod Avenue

Staff Report - Revised Goldenrod Utility Agreement 41
Decorations for Kannami Tree Lighting Ceremony

Staff Report - Kannami Decorations 52

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, December 2, 2015 

6:30 PM 
 
 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor  
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to 
recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps 
forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best 
to serve our community. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on the 
agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

A. Kerman Police Department (JKB) 
 

1. Presentation of Life Saving Awards to Officer Erika Rodriquez and Tom Chapman 
2. Swearing-In of Reserve Officer Kevin Gill and Lieutenant John Golden 

 

B. Swearing-In of City Manager John Kunkel (SH) 
 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items 
of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council 
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the 
Mayor will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is 
prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. 
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 

2



 
2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: November 18, 2015   
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: October 25, 2015 - November 07, 2015: $130,592.02; Retro Pay & Other: 
$898.17; Overtime: $5,999.43; Standby: $1,188.07; Comp Time Earned: 13.50      
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime Report 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 

Nos 7555-7618: $236,847.60      
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Accepting Public Pedestrian Easement as Part of Site Plan Review 
No. 15-03 for Valley Health Team Parking Lot Expansion (JJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt the resolution accepting the public 
pedestrian easement as part of Site Plan Review No. 15-03 for Valley Health Team Lot 
Expansion.     
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - VHT Easement     
 

E. SUBJECT: Resolution Accepting Rights of Way and Easements as Part of Conditional Use 
Permit No. 12-02 for the Mid Valley Disposal Expansion (JJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt the resolution accepting rights of way 
and easements as part of Conditional Use Permit No. 12-02 for the Mid Valley Disposal 
Expansion.     
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Mid Valley Easements     
 

3



F. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Agreements for Utility Service for 322 S. Goldenrod 
Avenue and 348 S. Goldenrod Avenue (JJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving the Agreements for 
Utility Service for David and Arlene Corneliuz at 322 S. Goldenrod Avenue and Reggie 
and Stella Trevino at 348 S. Goldenrod Avenue.     
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Revised Goldenrod Utility Agreement     
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
 None 
 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

A. SUBJECT: Decorations for Kannami Tree Lighting Ceremony (JK) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council discuss purchase of decorations for Kannami Tree Lighting 
Ceremony and authorize staff to proceed. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Kannami Decorations   
 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 
A. Solar Plant Update 

B. City offices closed December 25, 26, and January 1. 

 
6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 

 
A. aƛŘ ±ŀƭƭŜȅ !ƴƴǳŀƭ [ǳƴŎƘŜƻƴ π ¢ƘǳǊǎŘŀȅΣ 5ŜŎŜƳōŜǊ млΣ мнΥллπнΥлл ǇΦƳΦΣ IŀǊǊƛǎ wŀƴŎƘ

 

         .Φ Pageantry of Lights Parade – Saturday, December 12, 6:00 p.m. 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 
None 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 Agenda packet is available for review 72 hours prior to the meeting at the city clerk’s office and on the 
city website. Items received at the meeting will be available for review at the city clerk’s office. 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

4



MINUTES 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, November 18, 2015 

6:30 PM 
 
 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

Present: Mayor Hill (SH) Rhonda Armstrong (RA) Gary Yep (GY), Fox (NF), Nijjer (BN) 
Absent: None 
Also Present: City Attorney Cantú, Chief of Police, Community Services Director, 
Public Works Director, City Engineer 

Voting: Yes, 
No, Absent 
(Abstain if 
needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor   

• Call to Order 6:38 p.m. 

• Roll Call All present 

• Invocation SH 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  Performed 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS Approved 
GY/BN (5-0-0) 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS  

A. Presentation of Almond Festival Scholarship (PG) Presented 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL None 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
Payroll Report: 10/11/2015 - 10/24/2015: $128,275.85; Retro Pay & Other: 
$1,892.08; Overtime: $2,049.81; Standby: $1,089.74; Comp Time Earned: 
59.50      
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
1. Nos. 7472-7554: $212,526.39 
2. Excepting - Sebastian: 7500 - $2,721.17, Sebastian: 7542 - $429.61 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank 
transfers as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 

RA Recused 
from 2.C.2 
Employee 
Approved 
Excepting 2.C 
GY/NF  
(5-0-0) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Approved 
GY/NF 7500 – 
7542 (4-0-0-1) 
RA recused 

5



 

D. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending October 31, 2015 (TJ)  

RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly investment Report as 
presented     

 

E. SUBJECT: Second Reading and Adoption on Amendment to the Zoning 
Ordinance Requiring Conditional Use Permit for Massage Business 
Establishments in General Commercial Zone District (OP) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion waive full reading and adopt Zoning 
Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 17.48 of Title 17 of the Kerman Municipal 
Code to Require a Conditional Use Permit for Massage Establishments in the 
General Commercial Zone District.     

Ord 15-05 

F. SUBJECT: Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance Adding Chapter 9.27 
to the Kerman Municipal Code Relating to Massage Establishments and 
Therapists (OP) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion waive full reading and adopt 
ordinance adding Chapter 9.27 to the Kerman Municipal Code relating to 
Massage Establishments and Therapists.     

Ord 15-06 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS None 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

A. SUBJECT: Resolution Amending Section 3 of the Municipal Utility Guidelines 
During Drought Emergency (KM) 

Approved 
RA/BN (5-0-0)  

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution amending Section 
3 of the Municipal Utility Guidelines During Drought Emergency to 
restricting landscape watering to zero days December 1, 2015 to March 1, 
2016 with exceptions for homes and businesses with drip systems in place. 

Res 15-66 

B. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Memorandum of Understanding for 
Implementation of the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (KM) 

Approved 
NF/GY (5-0-0) 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving 
Memorandum of Understanding for Implementation of the Sustainable 
Groundwater Management Act in the Fresno Area / North Kings Sub-Basin. 

Res 15-67 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS  

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS  

6



7. CLOSED SESSION 
 

7:34 p.m. 

A. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 Conference with Real 
Property Negotiators Property: 14510 W. Kearney Boulevard; APN 023-
130-34; Kerman CA City Negotiators: Jerry Jones, City Engineer Negotiating 
Parties: William John Tolmachoff, as Trustee of the William John 
Tolmachoff Living Trust, U/A dated December 23, 2014 Under Negotiation: 
Price and terms of payment 

 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 7:43 p.m. 
 

No reportable 
action 

8. ADJOURNMENT 7:44 p.m. 
Approved 
GY/RA (5-0-0) 

 

 

MINUTES CERTIFICATION 

 
I,   MARCI REYES, City Clerk for the City of Kerman, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the 
above Minutes are a true depiction of all actions taken at the City Council meeting held on the first date 
above written at Kerman City Hall, 850 S. Madera Ave, Kerman, CA. 

         Date: November 19, 2015 
 
         ____________________ 
         Marci Reyes 
         City Clerk 
 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



    
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: DECEMBER 2, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Accepting Public Pedestrian Easement as Part of Site Plan Review No. 15-03 for Valley 

Health Team Parking Lot Expansion 

RECOMMENDATION  
 

Council by motion adopt the resolution accepting the public pedestrian easement as part of Site Plan Review No. 
15-03 for Valley Health Team Parking Lot Expansion. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
As a condition of approval for the expansion of their parking lot, Valley Health Team was required to provide a 
handicap accessible path around their existing driveway and dedicate a public pedestrian easement to the City for 
the accessible path. Valley Health Team has prepared and signed the required deed of easement for pedestrian 
purposes. Council must accept the easement on behalf of the public in order for the deed of easement to be 
recorded. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 

None. 
 

DISCUSSION  
 
The Valley Health Team (VHT) office is located at 445 Madera Avenue, between Kearney Boulevard and Sunset 
Avenue. VHT has recently purchased the vacant lot just north of their property with the intent to expand their parking 
lot. VHT submitted a site plan review application to the City for review of their proposed improvements. As part of 
the review process, the City established conditions of approval for the expansion. As a condition of approval, the 
City required that VHT provide a handicap accessible path around their existing driveway, in accordance with 
Americans with Disabilities Act requirements, and dedicate a public pedestrian easement to the City for the 
accessible path. The improvement plans for the expansion were approved by the City on July 27, 2015 and VHT has 
prepared and signed the required deed of easement for pedestrian purposes.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 

None. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Not Required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/Exhibits  

19



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 6 
VHT Pedestrian Easement Acceptance 
  

 
Attachment ‘A’ 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN ACCEPTING  
THE PUBLIC PEDESTRIAN EASEMENT AS PART OF SITE PLAN REVIEW NO. 15-03  

FOR VALLEY HEALTH TEAM PARKING LOT EXPANSION 
      

WHEREAS, Valley Health Team, Inc. is the legal owner of Assessor’s Parcel Number 023-123-45 and 
47; and 

WHEREAS, Valley Health Team, Inc. intends to expand their existing parking lot on their property; and 

WHEREAS, the public necessity requires an easement for public pedestrian purposes in accordance with 
City of Kerman policies and Conditions of Approval for the project. 

WHEREAS, Valley Health Team, Inc. has offered an easement to the City of Kerman for public 
pedestrian purposes; and 

WHEREAS, Government Code 2781 requires that deeds or grants conveying an interest in or easement 
upon real property to a governmental agency for public purposes shall not be accepted for recordation without 
the consent of the City by resolution or certificate attached to or printed on the deed.  

  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN HEREBY resolves as follows: 
 

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated by reference. 

Section 2. By order of the City Council the interests in real property conveyed to the City from 
Valley Health Team, Inc. as shown on the attached Deed of Easement as Exhibits 1 is 
hereby accepted by the City of Kerman for public use.   

Section 3. The City of Kerman consents to the recordation of the Deeds of Easement with the 
Fresno County Recorder’s Office. 

Section 4. The City Clerk shall affix a certificate attesting to this resolution to the Deed of 
Easement. 

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman 
held on the 2nd day of December, 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 

 
 

20



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 6 
VHT Pedestrian Easement Acceptance 
  

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
             
        Stephen B. Hill  

Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

  

21



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 6 
VHT Pedestrian Easement Acceptance 
  

Exhibit 1 

 
 

22



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 6 
VHT Pedestrian Easement Acceptance 
  

 

23



City Council Staff Report    Page 6 of 6 
VHT Pedestrian Easement Acceptance 
  

 

24



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: DECEMBER 2, 2015 

  

To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Accepting Rights of Way and Easements as part of Conditional Use Permit No. 12-02 for 

the Mid Valley Disposal Expansion 

RECOMMENDATION  
 

Council by motion adopt the resolution accepting rights of way and easements as part of Conditional Use Permit No. 
12-02 for the Mid Valley Disposal Expansion. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 

Mid Valley Disposal, Inc. was approved for a conditional use permit to expand their existing facility in 2013. As a 
condition of approval, Mid Valley is required to offer for dedication several rights of way and easements for public 
improvements to be installed as part of the expansion. The rights of way and easements are for public street, utility, 
water, and storm drain purposes. City Council must accept the rights of way and easements on behalf of the public 
for public use so they may be recorded. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 

None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 

Mid Valley Disposal, Inc. owns and operates a recycling and transfer station located on Jensen Avenue 
approximately one quarter mile west of Madera Avenue. In 2013 the City approved Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
No. 12-02 for the expansion of Mid Valley’s facility. The CUP is subject to conditions of approval that require the 
construction of public street, water, and storm drain improvements. The required improvements necessitate the 
dedication of certain rights of way and easements to the City for access to and use of the improvements. The 
required rights of way and easements are as follows: 
 

1. Public Street Easement for the widening of a portion of Jensen Avenue and Church Avenue along the 
frontage of Mid Valley’s property.  

2. Public Utility Easement for public utilities within Jensen Avenue and Church Avenue along the 
frontage of Mid Valley’s property. 

3. Public Water Main Easement for public water mains within Mid Valley’s property. 

4. Public Storm Drain Easement for public storm drain facilities within Mid Valley’s property. 

 

25



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 16 
CUP 12-02 Easement Acceptance 
  
 
The improvement plans for Phase 1A of Mid Valley’s expansion were approved on October 7, 2015. Mid Valley has 
prepared and signed the required easement documents for dedication to the City. City Council must accept the 
rights of way and easements on behalf of the public for public use in order for the easements to be recorded. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
None. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Not Required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/Exhibits 
 

 
  

26



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 16 
CUP 12-02 Easement Acceptance 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-___ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN ACCEPTING RIGHTS OF WAY 
AND EASEMENTS AS PART OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 12-02 

FOR THE MID VALLEY DISPOSAL, INC. EXPANSION 
 

WHEREAS, Mid Valley Disposal, Inc. is the legal owner of Assessor’s Parcel Number 023-080-19S and 33S; and 

WHEREAS, Mid Valley Disposal, Inc. intends to expand their existing recycling and transfer facility; and 

WHEREAS, the public necessity requires rights of way and easements for public street, utility, water, and storm 
drain purposes in accordance with City of Kerman policies and Conditions of Approval for the project.; and 

WHEREAS, Mid Valley Disposal, Inc. has offered for dedication the following rights of way and easements to the 
City of Kerman for public purposes: 

1. Public Street Easement for the widening of a portion of Jensen Avenue and Church Avenue along the 
frontage of Mid Valley’s property; 

2. Public Utility Easement for public utilities within Jensen Avenue and Church Avenue along the frontage 
of Mid Valley’s property; 

3. Public Water Main Easement for public water mains within Mid Valley’s property; and 

4. Public Storm Drain Easement for public storm drain facilities within Mid Valley’s property; and 
 

WHEREAS, Government Code 2781 requires that deeds or grants conveying an interest in or easement upon 
real property to a governmental agency for public purposes shall not be accepted for recordation without the consent of 
the City by resolution or certificate attached to or printed on the deed.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN HEREBY resolves as follows: 

 
Section 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated by reference. 

Section 2. By order of the City Council the interests in real property conveyed to the City from Mid 
Valley Disposal, Inc. as shown on the attached Deeds of Easement as Exhibits 1, 2, 3, 
and 4 are hereby accepted by the City of Kerman for public use.   

Section 3. The City of Kerman consents to the recordation of the Deeds of Easement with the 
Fresno County Recorder’s Office. 

Section 4. The City Clerk shall affix a certificate attesting to this resolution to the Deed of 
Easement. 

27



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 16 
CUP 12-02 Easement Acceptance 
  

 
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on 

the 2nd day of December, 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
             
        Stephen B. Hill  

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
     
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

  

28



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 16 
CUP 12-02 Easement Acceptance 
  
 

Exhibit ‘1’ 

 

29



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 16 
CUP 12-02 Easement Acceptance 
  

30



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 16 
CUP 12-02 Easement Acceptance 
  

 

31



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 16 
CUP 12-02 Easement Acceptance 
  

Exhibit ‘2’ 

 

32



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 16 
CUP 12-02 Easement Acceptance 
  

33



City Council Staff Report   Page 10 of 16 
CUP 12-02 Easement Acceptance 
  

 

34



City Council Staff Report   Page 11 of 16 
CUP 12-02 Easement Acceptance 
  

Exhibit ‘3’ 

 

35



City Council Staff Report   Page 12 of 16 
CUP 12-02 Easement Acceptance 
  

36



City Council Staff Report   Page 13 of 16 
CUP 12-02 Easement Acceptance 
  

 

37



City Council Staff Report   Page 14 of 16 
CUP 12-02 Easement Acceptance 
  

Exhibit ‘4’ 

 

38



City Council Staff Report   Page 15 of 16 
CUP 12-02 Easement Acceptance 
  

39



City Council Staff Report   Page 16 of 16 
CUP 12-02 Easement Acceptance 
  

 

40



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: DECEMBER 2, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Approving Agreements for Utility Service for 322 S. Goldenrod Avenue and 348 S. 

Goldenrod Avenue 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution approving the Agreements for Utility Service for David and Arlene Corneliuz at 
322 S. Goldenrod Avenue and Reggie and Stella Trevino at 348 S. Goldenrod Avenue. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
City Council approved the Agreements for Utility Service for 322 and 348 S. Goldenrod Avenue on September 16, 
2015. After approval, Staff prepared and submitted an application to the Fresno Local Agency Formation 
Commission (LAFCo) requesting authorization to provide utility service to the two properties, plus the four adjacent 
properties for future connection. LAFCo has authorized the utility service connections under the condition that the 
property owners agree not to protest future annexation into the City. The Agreement for Utility Service has been 
revised to include this provision. In summary, the only revisions to the Agreements include the LAFCo application 
process and fees, and LAFCo’s condition of approval regarding annexation. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Due to failure of existing wells in the area, the owners of the subject properties have become concerned about the 
longevity of their own wells. In order to ensure a reliable source of water, the owners have requested to connect to 
City utilities. The subject properties are located on the east side of Goldenrod Avenue, north of Kearney Boulevard, 
just outside of the City Limits, see Attachment ‘B’. The existing improvements to each property include a single 
family residence that is served by a well and septic system. The properties were provided with water and sewer 
services as part of the improvements completed along Goldenrod Avenue for the Goldenrod Elementary School.  
 
There are a total of six properties along Goldenrod, between Kearney Boulevard and Stanislaus Avenue that were 
provided with a water and sewer service stub when Goldenrod was improved as part of the development of the 
elementary school. A map showing the location of the properties is included as Attachment ‘B’. At this time, the City 
has received requests to connect to City utilities from the owners of 322 and 348 S. Goldenrod Avenue. The City 
has previously entered into a Utility Service Agreement with Mr. and Mrs. Magana at 432 S. Goldenrod Avenue.  
 

41



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 11 
Corneliuz & Trevino Utility Agreements 
  
Due to the properties being located outside of the City Limits, the City was required to obtain authorization from 
LAFCo to connect the properties to City utilities. Staff prepared and submitted the required application and paid the 
required application fee to obtain LAFCo authorization. In order to reduce the burden of costs on the property 
owners, the City applied for authorization to connect all six properties so that the application costs could be split 
amongst them. The fair share cost for each property is $294. 
 
LAFCo has authorized the connection of the properties to City utilities with the condition that each property owner 
agrees, at the time of execution of an Agreement for Utility Service with the City, to not protest annexation into the 
City in the future. This condition, as well as the property owner’s obligation to pay their fair share cost associated 
with LAFCo’s authorization, has been incorporated into the Agreement for Utility Service.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The water service will be metered and the owners will be required to pay monthly water and sewer charges based 
on current rates. The applicable development impact fees will be collected over a 10-year period. The total impact 
fees to be collected are $9,208, or $76.73 per month for the 10-year term. The property owners will also have to pay 
their fair share cost in the amount of $294 for obtaining LAFCo’s authorization. This obligation will have to be paid 
prior to connecting to City utilities. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Not Required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/Exhibit 
B. Utility Service Map 

 
 
  

42



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 11 
Corneliuz & Trevino Utility Agreements 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 

APPROVING AGREEMENTS FOR UTILITY SERVICE FOR  
DAVID AND ARLENE CORNELIUZ AT 322 S. GOLDENROD AVENUE AND  

REGGIE AND STELLA TREVINO AT 348 S. GOLDENROD AVENUE 
 

WHEREAS, David and Arlene Corneliuz are the owners of real property located at 322 S. Goldenrod Avenue, in the 
County of Fresno; and 

WHEREAS, Reggie and Stella Trevino are the owners of real property located at 348 S. Goldenrod Avenue, in the 
County of Fresno; and 

WHEREAS, the Corneliuz and Trevino properties each contains a single family residence, water well and septic 
system; and 

WHEREAS, sewer and water mains currently exist across the frontage of the subject property in Goldenrod Avenue 
and water and sewer services have been previously installed for the Corneliuz and Trevino properties; and  

WHEREAS, the amount of the City of Kerman Development Impact Fees for the Corneliuz property to connect to the 
sewer and water system are $9,208; and 

WHEREAS, the amount of the City of Kerman Development Impact Fees for the Trevino property to connect to the 
sewer and water system are $9,208; and 

WHEREAS, David and Arlene Corneliuz and Reggie and Stella Trevino have each made application to the City of 
Kerman for water and sewer service; and  

WHEREAS, Section 13.08 of the Kerman Municipal Code requires payment of connection charges, and Section 
13.04.100 of the Kerman Municipal Code requires an Agreement for Utility Service between the property owner and the City 
before utility service can be provided; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has applied for and obtained authorization from the Fresno Local Agency Formation Commission 
to provide utility service to the subject properties. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Agreement for Utility Service for David and Arlene Corneliuz at 322 S. Goldenrod Avenue is hereby approved. 
2. The Agreement for Utility Service for Reggie and Stella Trevino at 348 S. Goldenrod Avenue is hereby approved. 

43



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 11 
Corneliuz & Trevino Utility Agreements 
  

3. The City Manager is authorized to sign the City’s form of Agreement for Utility Service, as shown in Exhibit 1, on 
behalf of the City. 

  
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 2nd day of 
December, 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 

 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 

 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
 
                                                                                  
       Stephen B. Hill  

Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
                                                                  
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

44



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 11 
Corneliuz & Trevino Utility Agreements 
  

Exhibit 1 
 

 

45



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 11 
Corneliuz & Trevino Utility Agreements 
  

46



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 11 
Corneliuz & Trevino Utility Agreements 
  

47



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 11 
Corneliuz & Trevino Utility Agreements 
  

48



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 11 
Corneliuz & Trevino Utility Agreements 
  

49



City Council Staff Report   Page 10 of 11 
Corneliuz & Trevino Utility Agreements 
  

 

50



City Council Staff Report   Page 11 of 11 
Corneliuz & Trevino Utility Agreements 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 

 

51



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: CITY MANAGER 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: DECEMBER 2, 2015 

 
  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: John Kunkel, City Manager 
Subject: Decorations for Kannami Tree Lighting Ceremony 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council discuss purchase of decorations for Kannami Tree Lighting Ceremony and authorize staff to proceed. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
This year marks our 30th anniversary of establishing the City of Kannami, Japan as Kerman’s sister city. A tree was 
planted in honor of this sister city relationship with Kannami. Annually prior to the Pageantry of Lights Parade, which 
is scheduled for December 12, the Chamber of Commerce lights the Kannami tree.  
 
It was suggested that we have the lighting of the tree with carolers from one of the schools and have the Mayor and 
the chamber president “throw the switch” to officially kick-off the light parade.  
 
With the current decorations for the Kannami tree showing their age, as well as the tree’s growth over the years, 
there is a need for additional decorations to cover the tree appropiately. In addition, the wiring needs to be 
upgraded, which can be completed by City staff. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
The City needs to purchase additional decorations for the Kannami tree. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Staff has discussed the Sister City tree lighting ceremony with the Chamber of Commerce Director and the Chamber 
is fully supportive of this event having more emphasis and “kicking off” the parade.  
 
At the suggestion of Councilman Fox, a special ornament will be purchased commemorating the 30th anniversary of 
the sister city relationship, which will be sent to Kannami along with a video recording of the event.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
Cost/quotes are being compiled and will be presented at the meeting. 
 

52


	Agenda
	Minutes
	November 18, 2015

	Payroll
	Payroll/Overtime Report

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Resolution Accepting Public Pedestrian Easement as Part of Site Plan Review No. 15-03 for Valley Health Team Parking Lot Expansion
	Staff Report - VHT Easement

	Resolution Accepting Rights of Way and Easements as Part of Conditional Use Permit No. 12-02 for the Mid Valley Disposal Expansion
	Staff Report - Mid Valley Easements

	Resolution Approving Agreements for Utility Service for 322 S. Goldenrod Avenue and 348 S. Goldenrod Avenue
	Staff Report - Revised Goldenrod Utility Agreement

	Decorations for Kannami Tree Lighting Ceremony
	Staff Report - Kannami Decorations




